
WHITE OAK CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

WHITE OAK CITY HALL 
JUNE 12, 2012 

6:00P.M. 

MEMBERS PRESENT Mayor Rick May, Mayor Pro-Tem Barbara Ray, Kyle Kutch, Lance 
Noll, Charlie Owens, Kelly Mitchell 

STAFF PRESENT : Charlie Smith , Sherry Roberts, Mike Self, Jim Nail , Billy Morgan, Chad 
Walls, Debbie Sadler, Terry Roach, 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor May called the meeting to order at 6:00p.m. Councilmember Kutch led the invocation and 
Mayor May led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Consider and/or approve payment of bills. 
B. Consider and/or approve City Council minutes from May 8, 2012 

Councilmember Noll made the motion to approve, seconded by Councilmember Owens. Carried 
unanimously. 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

None. 

OATH OF OFFICE for newly elected City Councilmembers. 

City Secretary Sherry Roberts administered the oaths to Mayor Rick May, Councilmember Place 4 
Charlie Owens, and Councilmember Place 5 Kelly Mitchell. 

CONSIDERATION & APPOINTMENT of Mayor Pro-Tem. 

Councilmember Owens made the motion to reappoint Dr. Barbara Ray as Mayor Pro-Tem, 
seconded by Councilmember Kutch. Carried unanimously. 

CONSIDERATION & REAPPOINTMENT of Raymond "Bo" Rogers as Municipal Court Judge. 

Councilmember Owens questioned if the fee for his services had been previously discussed and 
was the council going to search for other avenues to lower this expense. Mayor May explained the 
cost of the associate judge was decreased in order to alleviate some of this expense. City 
Coordinator Charlie Smith explained the only court held now by the associate judge is Spanish 
court or if there is an arraignment at the jail that requires speaking in Spanish. Mayor May 
explained that our judge's salary is somewhat close to surrounding area city judges. Mayor Pro
Tem Ray stated this is not really a decision on salary. Mayor May agreed and stated his salary 
would be set during the budget process. City Coordinator Smith explained that according to our 

City Council Regular Minutes 
June 12, 2012 

Page 1 



charter, the municipal judge is to be appointed every two years and the term runs concurrent with 
the mayor. Councilmember Mitchell questioned as to what happens if the Council appoints him and 
his salary is lowered during the budget process, can he turn the job down? Mayor May answered 
yes. Councilmember Noll questioned if he was doing an adequate job on returning phone calls, etc. 
Asst. Police Chief Terry Roach responded that he does not always respond to texts ore-mails but 
will come by usually on his way to work. 

Councilmember Noll made the motion to approve the appointment, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem 
Ray. Carried unanimously. 

CONSIDERATION & APPROVE Ordinance 2012-06 granting SWEPCO a 25-year franchise. 

Councilmember Mitchell made the motion to approve, seconded by Councilmember Noll. Before a 
vote was taken, there was a lengthy discussion. 

Councilmember Kutch stated he did not agree with Section IV relating to the cutting of trees in the 
right-of-way. He stated he was not happy with the way the contracted company cut the tops and 
sides out of trees in town and how it was not a pretty sight. He suggested Section IV be changed 
and does not believe it is necessary to cut big tops out of trees. 

Mayor Pro-Tem Ray stated her trees have not been trimmed in accordance with ISA 
standards. They were trimmed with no regard to the health of the trees nor the consequences of 
the death of lobbed off branches. This has occurred on two occasions, the last being the summer 
of 2011. She begged workers to cut the branches back to the tree trunk and not to lop off the 
ends. They, however, did lop off the limbs and promised that since they would be working in the 
area they would return and cut the branches back to the tree trunk. They never returned. 

City Coordinator Smith explained that he and the city attorney met with SWEPCO's attorneys and 
discussed options related to the City's rights, which SWEPCO agreed to do and changes were 
made to the contract. Mayor Pro-Tem Ray stated the current contract expires June 30, 2012 and 
questioned if it matters if there is a new contract in place. City Coordinator Smith stated there was 
an extension ready to be approved if needed. 

Mayor May asked Councilmember Noll if he had any suggestions. Councilmember Noll asked if 
there was any way that the tree trimmers could check with a city official first. Mayor Pro-Tem Ray 
suggested the trimmers should ask the property owners first. Mayor May reminded the council on 
how the ice storm brought a lot of limbs down on power lines and some citizens were without 
electricity for many days. Councilmember Owens stated this was in part because SWEPCO waited 
too long to trim trees and they should have been doing this annually. Mayor May explained that a 
requirement of the contract could be having an annual inspection of limbs and/or an annual 
trimming of trees throughout town. Councilmember Owens stated he felt like the company cut 
enough trees back to buy them another 1 0 years before they have to trim again and they destroyed 
some beautiful trees. 

Mayor May asked for a vote as the ordinance is written. The ordinance was not approved with a 
vote of 0-5. Mayor May explained they would go back to SWEPCO and ask for Section IV to be 
amended and will bring this issue back to the council. 

DISCUSSION regarding TxDot's permission for the City to regulate permitting for driveway cutouts 

along state owned streets. 

City Council Regular Minutes 
June 12, 2012 

Page2 



City Coordinator Smith explained the City could take over our own permitting of driveway cutouts. 
TxDOT would only allow cutouts every 450 feet because of the speed limit. Longview does their 
own permitting. A policy would need to be submitted to TxDOT for approval and this would allow 

city officials to regulate cutouts on any state highways in the City. This would affect Hwy 80, White 
Oak Rd., George Richey, and Hwy 42. The city attorney is not in favor of this because of the 
liability, but this would open a lot of doors for the City. City Coordinator Smith stated he just wanted 
to see how the council felt about this before going forward. Councilmember Kutch stated the City 
would be calling the shots and if it was deemed unsafe, the permit would be denied. 
Councilmember Owens stated there would be criteria put in place. WOEDCO Director Debbie 
Sadler told the Council that the first time Fred's wanted to come to town, TxDOT would not allow 
curb cuts where they wanted. 

DISCUSSION of future projects and capital purchases. 

City Coordinator Smith told the Council that department heads are looking at capital purchases and 
setting priorities on what to present during the budget workshops. 

He also spoke to the Council about the deterioration of asphalt curbs throughout town and asked 
the Council to be aware of these as they travel through town. He and Director of Public Works Mike 
Self have talked about a plan to replace these every other year with concrete curbs and gutters. 
Councilmember Mitchell asked if the homeowner would be charged for these. Mr. Smith explained 
that after talking to the chief appraiser with the Gregg Appraisal District, Tom Hayes, property 
values will increase on the homeowner's appraisal because of concrete curbs versus asphalt. This 
would also increase property tax revenue for the City. 

Mr. Smith also passed out a pamphlet of an addition to the splash pad that is being looked at since 
the splash pad and concession stand are doing so well. This will be discussed more in depth 
during the budget process. Director of Public Works Mike Self stated there has been very little 
spent on maintenance for the splash pad. However, some main concerns of citizens are not 
enough of shade structure, the lack of shade over the existing playground, and just not enough 
space to accommodate everyone. 

CITY COORDINATOR ITEMS 

A. Capital Projects Update 
The 16" water line through Gladewater is complete. This is one of the reasons the 

reservoir is low, plus the increase of water being treated and used, and lack of rain. 

We are waiting on foliage for the new pond and for Lowe's to get paperwork signed 
for the boards they donated for the Penick Park pond pier. The placement of catfish for the pond 
will be next week. There was discussion on purchasing solar-powered feeders for the pond. 

Mr. Smith also informed the Council that the Redman building on the corner of Hwy 
80 and 42 and the building just west of McDonald's are to be tore down in the near future. 

Mayor May questioned what the status was of the Catfish Charlie's building on Hwy 
80. Mr. Smith explained that a letter needed to be sent to the owner. Some work has been done, 
but not as of lately. Mayor May stated the building needed to be put into operation or move it out. 

City Council Regular Minutes 
June 12, 2012 

Page 3 



Councilmember Owens questioned Mr. Smith about an e-mail he received 
regarding improvements to Highway 80. Mr. Smith replied that TxDOT was putting in a turn lane 
and is a done deal, but the project will not start until February 2013. The turn lane will extend from 
Fisher Road in Greggton to Hawkins Creek, just east of Hwy 42. 

Mayor Pro-Tem Ray asked about the pending land purchase. Mr. Smith stated the 
earnest money has been paid and contract was given to the owner. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn at 6:45 p.m. by Councilmember Owens, seconded by Councilmember Mitchell. 
Carried unanimously. 

ATTEST: 

~~~ 
City Secretary 

City Council Regular Minutes 
June 12, 2012 

Page4 


